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Town of

LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA

4501 Ocean Drive, Lauderdale-by-the-Sea, Florida 33308-3610
Telephone: (954) 776-0576 » Fax: (954) 776-1857

OFFICE OF THE December 07, 2001
TOWN MANAGER

Honorable Mayor and Commissioners:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Town. We believe the
information as presented is accurate in all material respects, that it is presented in a
manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the
Town as measured by the financial activity of its various funds, account groups, and
component unit and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a general
understanding of the Town's financial activity have been included.

The CAFR is presented in four sections: introductory, financial statistical and
compliance. The introductory section, which is unaudited, includes this letter of
transmittal, the Town’s organizational chart, the Town's principal officials- and the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The financial section
includes the independent auditor's report, followed by the general purpose financial
statements and the combining, individual fund and account group statements and
schedules, as well as the related notes to the financial statements.

The statistical section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and other
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. Data presented in this section
demonstrates historical economic and financial trends designed to give an overall view
of the fiscal capacity of the Town. The compliance section includes the reports required
under Government Auditing Standards and the Rules of the Auditor General.

The basis for determining the reporting entity is established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) criteria. The financial reporting entity consists of
the primary government, organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The only
organization that meets these requirements and, consequently, is included in this CAFR,
is the Lauderdale-By-The-Sea Volunteer Fire Department. This report includes all funds
and account groups of the Town.

THE TOWN

The Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, incorporated in 1947, is located between the
Atlantic Ocean and the Intracoastal Waterway on the Gold Coast of Florida. The Town
is in the east-central part of Broward County 30 miles north of Miami and 33 miles south
of Palm Beach. Because of the Town's prime seaside location, it can be expected to
continue strong economic growth from tourism and other industries.



The Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea is primarily a residential community. Employment
within the Town is primarily executive/managerial, professional and sales. The major
industries within the Town are retail trade, finance, insurance and real estate. Most
residents are employed within South Florida. The Town is approximately 2.5 square
miles in area and has a year-round population of approximately 6,000 residents. The
peak seasonal population is approximately 12,600.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The Town operates under a Commission-Manager form of government. Policymaking
and legislative authority are vested in the Town Commission, which consists of a mayor,
a vice-mayor and three commissioners. The Town Commission is responsible for
passing ordinances, adopting and amending the annual budget, approving large
purchases, adopting resolutions and appointing the Town Manager, Town Attorney and
various boards and advisory groups.

The Town Manager is the chief administrative officer of the Town. The Town Manager
is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the Commission, directing
all Town employees, appointing and removing subordinate employees, preparing and
submitting the annual budget and overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Town.

The Volunteer Fire Department is a private corporation whose operations are funded by
the Town. The Fire Chief is elected by vote of the volunteer firefighters.

The Town Commission meets on the second and fourth Tuesday of each month at 7:00
p.m. in Jarvis Hall, 4501 Ocean Drive, Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea achieved tremendous growth, primarily residential
through the successful annexation of the Intracoastal Beach Area. The Town’s taxable
property value increased from a final gross taxable value of $518,283,213 for fiscal year
2000-2001 to a gross taxable value of $996,045,894 for fiscal year 2001-2002. This
increase enabled the Town to continue to maintain its high level of services and provide
additional funding of the Town’s Capital Improvement Plan with a low millage rate of
$4.70 per $1,000 of assessed property values.

In addition to acquiring additional land through annexation, the Town continues to study
availability of vacant land or property within the Town limits to continue to move strongly
into redevelopment for the 21% century by improving the infrastructure, updating zoning
protection, funding capital improvement projects and supporting a healthy economical
business district.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the year. A number of significant endeavors were completed during the year.
These accomplishments include:
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The Town successfully annexed the Intracoastal Beach Area into the Town and
continued working very hard on annexation related and transition matters with the
South Beach Civic Association.

The Town successfully negotiated and executed a fifteen year agreement with the
Broward Sheriff's Office. This agreement provides for police protection in both the
Town and the Intracoastal Beach Area.

The Town successfully negotiated with the City of Fort Lauderdale to take over the
Town’s sewer billing, including it with the City’s water billing.

We successfully requested Governor Bush to intercede on our behalf to the
Department of Revenue to correct our faulty 2000 U.S. Census undercount. Though
the Governor would make only a partial correction, it increased our population by
nearly 1,000 residents, leading to thousands of dollars in additional State revenue.

We began major overhaul of the Town’s Sea Grape pump station which will be
completed during the early part of fiscal year 2001-2002.

The Town negotiated and obtained long-term financing for physical improvements
tied to the Capital Improvement 5 Year Plan.

The Town Commission reviewed Phase |l of the Redevelopment Plan prepared by
Florida Atlantic University and prioritized projects as part of the Town’s Capital
Improvement Plan.

The Town continues to improve our Capital Improvement Program (CIP), expanding
our five-year project recommendations, refining our project cost estimates, improving
our CIP policy objectives, and undertaking several projects during the year.

The Town successfully implemented our second full year of senior recreational
programs by operating in conjunction with Goodwill Industries the Town’s first ever
Senior Activity Center.

The Town received a Class 9 rating from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency by participating in the Community Rating System program, which provides a
minimum of 5% savings to our residents on their Flood Insurance policies.

The Town continues to monitor and improve insurance coverage’s and participated
in the Florida League of Cities premium credit programs. This led to a savings of
$5,423 in the current fiscal year. Since entering the Town in the Premium Credit
Program in FY 96/97 the Town has saved $205,078.

The Town continued the very popular Citizens On Patrol program in the Police
Department.
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For the Future.

Earlier this year the Commission authorized the Town Engineer, Craven and Thompson
to conduct visioning workshops with the citizens of the newly annexed area and prepare
a plan to be presented to the Town Commission for review, modification and approval.

Many residents of the Intracoastal Beach Area indicated their desire to address their
needs and priorities pertaining to the capital improvement projects designated for the
Intracoastal Beach Area.

The Town Commission, Town Manager and various groups continue to work very hard
on annexation related and transition matters with the South Beach Civic Association,
County officials, and various municipal representatives.

We continue negotiations with the City of Fort Lauderdale for a new Water Service
agreement that we expect to conclude in the early part of fiscal year 2001-2002.

We will begin major repairs to the Town's Hibiscus pump station during the early part of
fiscal year 2001-2002.

We continued to review, modify, and approve plans with the Florida Department of
Transportation for projects to improve State Road AlA and Commercial Boulevard. The
road improvement project is underway and will be completed during fiscal year 2001-
2002.

The Town Commission approved various agreements for landscape architects to design
the Town's landscaping project and approved various agreements for engineering
service to improve our ability to speed up implementation of our capital program and
beautification efforts during fiscal year 2001-2002.

The Town remains poised to move boldly into high-quality redevelopment for the new
millennium.  Improved infrastructure, new buildings with improved architecture,
increased beautification, and an economically strong business district will all contribute
to a healthy municipality. When done properly the Town residents’ taxes will remain low
while services high. If there is no redevelopment, the alternative will be higher taxes
and a reduction of the quality of life.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Town are protected from loss,
theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the costs of controls should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.
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Budgetary Controls.

In addition, the Town maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions in the annual budget approved by
the Town Commission. The level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriated amount) is established at the total fund
level. The Town maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of
accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year end.

Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, capital improvement fund, parking
revenue improvement fund, stormwater and enterprise funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this
report, the Town continues to meet their responsibility for sound financial management.

General Government Functions.

The schedules on the following pages present a summary of the Town's general fund,
for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000.

Property tax revenue increased slightly due to increases in assessed property values
within the Town. Franchise fees decreased due to decline in gas prices. Increase in utility
taxes is a result of increased telecommunication collections. Parking meter income rose
because of enhanced enforcement due to additional personnel. Licenses and permits
increased because of change in billing cycle. Intergovernmental revenues rose as the
result of a strong local economy evidenced in the collection of sales tax. Charges for
services indicate a decrease because sewers fees now reside in the Enterprise Fund as
they relate to the sanitary sewer system. Grants increased due to receipt of a Block
Grant. Fines and forfeitures decreased slightly due to transition with the Broward Sheriff's
Office. Interest and other revenue declined due change in interest rates.

General Governmental Revenue

2000/01 % of 1899/00 Increase
Amount Total Amount (Decrease)
Property taxes $1,940,633 416%  $1,761,322 10.2%
Franchise fees 356,635 7.7 380,279 -6.2
Utility taxes 645,380 13.8 574,715 12.3
Parking meters 522,205 11.1 491,304 6.3
Licenses and permits 95,132 1.0 55,897 -70.2
Intergovernmental 380,643 8.6 374,416 1.7
Charges for services 31,937 1.3 643,183 -96.0
Fines and forfeitures 452,617 9.7 470,803 -3.9
Grants 21,506 0.4 8,004 168.7
Interest and other 204,396 4.8 228,778 -10.7
Total $4,651,084 100.0% $4,988,701 -6.7%
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General Government expenditures increased partly because of our newly annexed area,
which required reports to be completed and research to be done by outside consultants.
Public Safety increased as a result of contracting police services with Broward County
Sheriff's Office. The decrease in Physical Environment is the result of expenditures
related to the sanitary sewer system residing in the Enterprise Fund. Road and Streets
indicate a slight increase because of street repairs being done due to construction by
the Department of Transportation. Culture and Recreation expenditures increased
because of increase in special events being held. Decrease in debt service is a result of
the enterprise fund for the sanitary sewer system. The increase in capital outlay is a
direct result of computer equipment being replaced.

General Governmental Expenditures

2000/01 % of 1999/00 Increase
Amount Total Amount (Decrease)
General government $1,124,736 30.5% $1,018,075 10.5%
Public safety 1,668,751 45.3 1,432,211 16.5
Physical environment 2,607 A 769,934 -99.7
Roads and streets 628,133 17.0 611,153 2.8
Culture and recreation 137,363 3.7 111,675 23.0
Total current operating 3,561,590 96.6 3,943,048 -46.9
Debt service - 0.0 19,679 ~ -100.0
Capital outlay 123,475 3.4 104,854 17.5
Total $3,685.065 100.0% $4,067,581 -129.1%

The undesignated fund balance increased approximately 40% for the fiscal year 2000-
2001. The policy of transferring major capital expenditures to the capital improvement
fund and the Town’s responsibility for sound financial management has poised the Town
to be financially stable for the new millennium and move boldly during the transition
period of our newly annexed area.

Enterprise Operations.

The Town's enterprise operation is comprised of the sanitary sewer system. This
system services approximately 1,500 accounts, including residential and commercial.
Service to the commercial customers of the Intracoastal Beach area is provided by the
City of Pompano, residential service is by septic system. The Town maintains the
infrastructure of the system; however, revenues are derived from the charges for
sewage transmitted to and treated at the Town’s sewer pump station and the City of
Pompano plant as part of the large user process. The basis for the quantity of sewage
charged to each user is the level of the consumption of water. In order to pay for the
operating and maintenance expenses of the sewer system, rates are evaluated annually
to avoid subsidy by the General Fund. As of September 30, 2001, the enterprise fund
maintained an undesignated fund balance of $380,664 in reserves to be able to maintain
the infrastructure of the system or address any major emergency repairs.
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Debt Administration.

During the fiscal year the Town incurred an additional bank note in the amount of
$10,000,000 designated for capital projects within the capital improvement fund. As of
September 30, 2001 the Town had approximately $10,989,309 in long-term notes and
capital leases.

The Town has no General Obligation bonds outstanding. The balance of the
outstanding bond debt, which was issued in 1967 to finance the Town's sanitary sewer
system, was retired in 1997 leaving the Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea free of bond
debt.

Cash Management.

Most of the Town’s unrestricted cash is deposited in pooled cash money market
accounts and in repurchase agreements. Cash, temporarily idle and not required for
current operation, is invested with the Florida State Board of Administration’s Local
Government Surplus Trust Investment Pool. Interest earnings of these investments
during the year were approximately $225,303. In addition, all deposits are collateralized
or insured by federal depository insurance.

Risk Management.

The Town obtains insurance coverage from the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust. In
addition to maintaining the mandated insurance coverage the Town participates in the
Florida League of Cities premium credit programs. This led to a savings of $5,423 in the
current fiscal year. Since entering the Town in the Premium Credit Program in FY
96/97, the Town has saved $205,078.

Other Information.

Independent Audit. State statute mandates that an annual audit be performed on the
financial records of the Town, by independent certified public accountants. The firm of
Rachlin Cohen & Holtz LLP, was selected by competitive bid to audit the general
purpose financial statements of the Town. Generally accepted auditing standards and
the standards set forth in the General Accounting Office’'s Government Auditing
Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditors’
report on the general purpose financial statements is included in the financial section of
this report. The auditors’ report on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, as required by Government Auditing Standards can be found in the
compliance section of this report.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal years
ended 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000. The Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of a state and local government financial report.
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In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annua! financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable fegal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our
current CAFR continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

In addition, the Town again received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget
Presentation for its annual appropriated budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1,
2000-2001. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award the
Town's budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories including
policy documentation, financial planning and organization.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished
without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the administration
department. We would also like to extend our thanks to the firm of Rachlin Cohen &
Holtz LLP for their professional conduct of the Town's annual audit.

Finally, we wish to acknowledgé the interest, funding and support of the Town
Commission in management's planning and conducting the financial operations in a
responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

/W/%;\/ A fbn

Rgbert Baldwin Esther Colon
Town Manager Finance Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager
Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea,
Florida (the Town) as of September 30, 2001 and for the year then ended, as listed in the table of
contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida as of September 30,
2001, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 7,
2001 on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of]
compliance with certain laws, regulations and contracts. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with
this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and account group statements and
schedules and the required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of
the Town. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as 2 whole.




Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager
Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida
Page 2

The information shown in the statistical section listed in the table of contents has not been subjected to

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, accordingly,
we express no opinion thereon.

Lol Gt A28

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
December 7, 2001
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TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Fixed assets
Amount to be provided for the retirement of general long-term debt

Total assets and other debits

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Deposits

Due to other funds

Current portion of promissory note

Accrued vacation and sick leave

Capital lease obligations

Long-term promissory notes

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Equity and other credits:
Investment in general fixed assets
Contributed capital
Retained earnings:
Reserved for renewal and replacement
Unreserved
Fund balance:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for employees' pension benefits
Unreserved:
Designated for emergencies
Designated for subsequent years' projects
Designated for police and fire vehicle and equipment
Undesignated
Total equity and other credits

Total liabilities, equity and other credits

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Proprietary  Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type FundType  AccountGroups

Pension General General Totals
Special Capital Trust Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum

General  Revenue  Projects  Enferprise  Fund Assets Debt Only)
$2,539,8904 $34,286 $11,512,283 § 733,302 $ 57,826 § - 8 - $ 14,877,591
- - - - 144,135 144,135
34326 14,768 - 64,280 1,353 - - 114,727
632 - - - - - - 632
- - - 1,457,357 - 3,783,674 - 5,241,031
- - - - - - 10,500,300 10,500,300
$2,574,852  $49,054 $11,512,283 $2,254,939 $203,314 $3,783,674 $10,500,300 §$ 30,878,416
$ 102473 § - % - % 76425 § - § - 3 -3 178,898
28,321 - - - - - - 28,321
7,384 - - - - - - 7,384
- 632 - - - - - 632
- - - 49,718 - - - 49,718
- - - - - - 42,404 42,404
- - - - - - 186,946 186,946
- - - 492,180 - - 10,270,950 10,763,130
138,178 632 - 618,323 - - 10,500,300 11,257,433
- - - - - 3,783,674 - 3,783,674
- - - 639,513 - - - 639,513
- - - 624,980 - - - 624,980
- - - 277,258 - - - 277,258
- - - - 203314 - - 203,314
1,046,233 - - - - - - 1,046,233
300,000 - 5,135,230 - - - - 5,435,230
- 8,900 80,610 94,865 - - - 184,375
1,090,441 39,522 6,296,443 - - - - 7,426,406
2,436,674 48422 11,512,283 1,636,616 203,314 3,783,674 - 19,620,983
$2,574,852  $49,054 $11,512,283 $2,254,939 $203,314 $3,783,674 $10,500,300 § 30,878,416

See notes to general purpose financial statements.

3.



TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Revenues:
Property taxes
Franchise fees and utility taxes
Parking meters :
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Grants
Insurance reimbursement
Interest and other

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Economic development
Roads and streets
Recreation

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing source (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from promissory note

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over expenditures and

other financing uses

Fund balances, beginning
Residual equity transfer

Fund balances, ending

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Governmental Fund Types Total
Special Capital (Memorandum
General  Revenue  Projects Only

$1,940,633 § - 8 - $ 1,940,633
1,002,015 - - 1,002,015
522,205 - - 522,205
95,132 - - 95,132
380,643 - - 380,643
31,937 - - 31,937
452,617 - - 452,617
21,506 - - 21,506
204,396 34,190 80,748 319,334
4,651,084 34,190 80,748 4,766,022
1,124,737 - 14,964 1,139,701
1,668,751 202,123 - 1,870,874
2,607 - 53,057 55,664

- - 1,688 1,688

628,133 - - 628,133
137,362 - 98,138 235,500
123,475 14,622 - 138,097

- - 22,601 22,601

- - 16,759 16,759
3,685,065 216,745 207,207 4,109,017
966,019  (182,555) (126,459) 657,005
19,400 217,888 1,490,112 1,727,400
(668,610) - (1,285,352) (1,953,962)
- - 10,000,000 10,000,000
(649,210) 217,888 10,204,760 9,773,438
316,809 35,333 10,078,301 10,430,443
2,744 845 13,089 1,433,982 4,191,916
(624,980) - - (624,980)

$2,436,674 § 48,422

$11,512,283 $§ 13,997,379

4.

See notes to general purpose financial statements.



TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

General Fund Special Revenue Funds Capital Proje ds
Variance Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual  (Unfavgrable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Property taxes $1,896,353 $1,940,633 § 44230 $ - $ -3 - 3 - % - % -
Franchise fees and utility taxes 947,484 1,002,015 54,531 - - - - - -
Parking meters 469,168 522205 53,037 - - - - - -
Licenses and permits 64,061 95,132 31,071 - - - - - -
Intergovernmental 310,257 380,642 70,385 - - - - - -
Charges for services 25,139 31,937 6,798 - - - - - -
Fines and forfeitures 404,996 452,617 47,621 - - - - - -
Grants 19,700 21,506 1,806 - - - - - -
Insurance reimbursement - - - - - - - -
Interest and other 147,305 204,396 57,091 121 34,190 34,069 - 80,748 80,748
Total revenues 4,284,463 4,651,083 366,620 121 34,190 34,069 - 80,7438 80,748
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,335,627 1,124,737 210,890 - - - 10,926,701 14,964 10,911,737
Public safety 1,738,017 1,668,751 69,266 190,140 202,123 (11,983) - - -
Economic development - - - - - - 1,688 1,688 -
Physical environment 20,807 2,607 18,200 - - - 62,419 53,057 9,362
Roads and streets 817,822 628,133 189,689 - - - - - -
Recreation 146,573 137,362 9,211 - - - 403,418 98,138 305,280
Capital outlay 125,790 123,475 2,315 27,118 14,622 12,496 - - -
Debt service: ’
Principal - - - - - - 22,601 22,601 -
Interest - - - - - - 16,759 16,759 -
Total expenditures 4,184,636 3,685,065 499,571 217,258 216,745 513 11,433,586 207,207 11,226,379
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 99,827 966,018 866,191 (217,137) (182,555) 34,582 (11,433,586) (126,459) 11,307,127
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriated fund balance 291,493 - (291,493) - - - 1,308,826 - (1,308,826)
Operating transfers in 19,400 19,400 - 217,137 217,888 751 1,410,112 1,490,112 80,000
Operating transfers out (410,720)  (668,610) (257,890) - - - {1,285,352) (1,285,352) -
Proceeds from promissory note - - - - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 -

Total other financing sources (uses) (99,827) (649,210) (549,383 217,137 217,888 751 11,433,586 10,204,760 (1,228,326)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
and other financing sources $ - % 316,808 $§ 316,808 $ - $35333 § 35333 § - $10,078,301 $ 10,078,301

See notes to general purpose financial statements.
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TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Operating expenses:
Operating expenses -
Personal services
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Interest expense

Net non-operating revenues

Net income before operating transfers

Operating transfers in

Net income

Add depreciation on contributed capital
Increase in retained earnings

Retained earnings, beginning

Equity transfer in

Retained earnings, ending

$859,014

669,584
26,875
19,104
32,568

748,131

110,883

36,013
(33,517)
2,496
113,379
226,562
339,941

32,182

372,123

624,980

£997,103



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income $110,883
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 32,568
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable (64,280)
Increase in accounts payable 76,425
Net cash provided by operating activities 155,596

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Operating transfers in 226,561
Residual equity transfer in 624,980
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 851,541

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Capital expenditures (231,130)
Principal payments on debt (45,202)
Interest paid (33,516)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (309,848)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received 36,013
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 733,302
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning -
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $733,302

See notes to general purpose financial statements.
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TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer
Volunteer Fire Department
State

Total contributions

Investment income
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid
Loss on investment
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Net increase

PENSION TRUST FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:

Beginning of year

End of year

See notes to general purpose financial statements,
-8

$§ 4,646
38,774

8,002

52,022

598

52,620

8,208
74,818
68

83,094

(30,474)

233,788

$203,314
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NOTE 1.

TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida (the Town) was incorporated in 1947. The Town
operates under a Commission-Manager form of government and provides the following
municipal services to include but not be limited to: public safety (police and fire), parks and
recreation, public works, stormwater management, and building, zoning and code enforcement.
The general purpose financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as applied to governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described below.

1. Reporting Entity

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the
financial reporting entity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the
concept that elected officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of
the objectives of financial reporting is to provide users of financial statements with a basis for
assessing the accountability of the elected officials. The financial reporting entity consists of
the Town, organizations for which the Town is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Town are
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete. The Town is financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s governing board and it is able to impose its will on that
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits
to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Town. A blended component unit, although a
legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the Town’s operations and so data from this
unit is combined with data of the Town. Based upon the application of these criteria, there
was one organization that met the criteria described above.

Blended component unit - the Volunteer Fire Department, created by ordinance in 1962,
serves all the citizens of the Town. The Town Commission is the governing body of the
Volunteer Fire Department. It approves and funds the operating budget of the Fire
Department, and the Town is therefore financially accountable for the Department. The
Volunteer Fire Department is reported as a special revenue fund.

2. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Town are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account
groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used
to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and
managerial requirements. Account groups are a reporting device to account for certain assets

9.



TowN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds. The accounting
and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The Town has the following fund types and account groups:

Governmental funds are used to account for the Town’s general government activities.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets
and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of
these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis
of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e.,, when they are
measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Town considers all revenues available if
they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred.

Taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest are susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes
collected and held by the State at fiscal year end on behalf of the Town are also recognized as
revenue. Other receipts and fees become measurable and available when cash is received by
the Town and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Governmental Fund Types:

The General fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all or most of the
Town’s general activities except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Special Revenue funds are used to account for the collection and disbursement of
earmarked moneys. The Town maintains two special revenue funds: the Police
Confiscated Property Fund and the Volunteer Fire Department Fund.

The Capital Projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. The Town maintains two capital projects funds: the Capital
Improvement Program Fund and the Parking Revenue Improvement Fund.

Fiduciary Fund Type:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of other parties, including
other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government. When these assets
are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a pension trust fund, a non-
expendable trust fund or an expendable trust fund is used. The Town has one pension trust
fund; the Volunteer Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund.

-10-



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Fiduciary Fund Type (Continued):

The Pension Trust fund uses the accrual basis of accounting and is accounted for on a
flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets
and liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet.

Proprietary Fund Type:

The Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. All proprietary
funds apply applicable standards of the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued on
or before November 30, 1989 unless those standards conflict with or contradict
Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements.

The Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business or where the City Commission has
decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is
necessary for management accountability. The Town maintains two Enterprise funds: the
Sewer fund and the Stormwater fund.

Account Groups

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for fixed assets of the
general government. The General Long-Term Debt Account group is used to account for
long-term obligations of the general government.

3. Fixed Assets

General fixed assets acquired by other than the Enterprise fund for governmental purposes are
not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital acquisitions
are reflected as expenditures in each fund, and the related assets are reported in the general
fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical
records are available and at an estimated cost where no historical records exist.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of streets, bridges, curbs and

gutters, sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are not capitalized, as these assets
are immovable and of value only to the Town.

-11-



NOTE 1.

TownN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. Fixed Assets (Continued)

The fixed assets of the proprietary funds are recorded at cost in the respective enterprise fund.

Depreciation expense is provided on fixed assets recorded in the enterprise funds using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Utility plant and systems 25 — 75 years
When proprietary fund type fixed assets are disposed of, the related cost and accumulated

depreciation is removed from the respective accounts, with gains or losses on disposition
being reflected in income.

. Reserves and Designations

Fund balances are reserved to indicate that a portion of fund balance is not available for
appropriation or is legally segregated for a specific future use. The description of each
reserve indicates the purpose for which each was intended.

Designated fund balance indicates that a portion of fund equity has been segregated based on
tentative plans of the Town. Such plans or intent are subject to change.

Unreserved undesignated fund balance is the portion of fund equity available for any lawful
use.

. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund, the Volunteer Fire
Department (special revenue fund), the Police Confiscated Property (special revenue fund),
the Capital Improvement Program Fund (capital projects fund), the Parking Revenue
Improvement Fund (capital projects fund), on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

(a) The Town Manager submits to the Commission a proposed operating and capital budget
for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of

financing them.

(b) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

(c) Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

-12-



NOTE 1.

TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

(d) The Town Commission, by motion, may make supplemental appropriations for the year.

(e) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for the general fund.

(f) The Town Manager is authorized to transfer part or all of an unencumbered appropriation
balance within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any
fund must be approved by the Town Commission. The classification detail at which
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is at the fund level.

(g) Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Unencumbered amounts are
reappropriated in the following year’s budget.

(h) Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended. Individual type amendments
were not material in relation to the original appropriations.

. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Although
these estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current events and actions it may
undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results.

. Deposits and Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments in the State Board Investment Pool are
presented as cash and cash equivalents. In accordance with the Town’s investment policy,
investments consist of funds maintained with the State Board of Administration Investment
Pool (2A-7 Pool), and are reported at the fair value of its Pool shares which is the same as its
position in the Pool shares. Income from investments is recorded as earned.

. Vacation and Sick Leave

Town employees are granted vacation in varying amounts based on length of service and sick
leave at the rate of one day per month. Up to 30 days of vacation time and 60 days of sick
leave may be accrued and carried forward into the next year. In the event of termination, an
employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation days. Employees are reimbursed for 25
percent of accumulated sick leave upon leaving Town employment in good standing.

-13-



TOWN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NOTE 2.

8.

10.

11.

12.

Vacation and Sick Leave (Continued)

The cost of accumulated vacation and sick leave expected to be paid with expendable
financial resources is recorded as a general fund liability and the long-term portion is
recorded in the general long-term debt account group.

. Employee Retirement Plans

The Town participates in the Florida Retirement System for all of its full-time employees. It
also has a defined benefit pension plan for the Town’s volunteer firefighters and offers a
deferred compensation plan for its employees.

Long-Term Obligations

The Town reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-
term debt account group. Certain other governmental fund obligations not expected to be
financed with current available financial resources are also reported in the general long-term
debt account group. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are
reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds.

Debt proceeds are reported as an other financing source net of the applicable premium or
discount.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of funds are recorded m order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-
end are reported as reservations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities of the current period.

Memorandum Only - Total Column

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned as memorandum
only because they do not represent consolidated financial information and are presented only
to facilitate financial analysis. The columns do not present information that reflects financial
position or results of operations in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 each year and are first billed (levied) and due the
following November 1.

-14-



NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

PROPERTY TAXES (Continued)

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal,
school board and special district property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County
Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws for the State regulating tax assessments
are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide. State statutes
permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($10 per $1,000 of
assessed taxable valuation). The millage rate assessed by the Town for the year ended
September 30, 2001 was 3.85 mills.

The tax levy of the Town is established by the Commission prior to October 1 of each year, and
the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the local tax levy, which includes
Broward County, Broward County School Board and special taxing districts.

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 of each year. Each
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State Department of Revenue for
review to determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of State Statutes.

The assessed value at January 1, 2000, upon which the 2000-2001 levy was based, was
approximately $470,615,060.

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 each year.
Broward County mails to each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of the taxes due
and Broward County also collects the taxes for the Town. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of
such notice from Broward County, with discounts at the rate of four percent (4%) if paid in the
month of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of December, two percent (2%) if
paid in the month of January and one percent (1%) if paid in the month of February. Taxes paid
during the month of March are without discount, and all unpaid taxes on real and tangible
personal property become delinquent and liens are placed on April 1 of the year following the
year in which taxes were assessed. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by Broward
County are provided for in the Laws of Florida. There were no material delinquent property
taxes at September 30, 2001.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation,
significant deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the
State of Florida to hold public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security
for Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories
to deposit with the Treasurer or another banking institution eligible collateral. In the event of
a failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be
responsible for covering any resulting losses. The Town’s deposits at year end are insured or
collateralized with securities held by the entity or by its agent in the entity’s name.
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NOTE 3.

TownN OoF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments

The State Board of Administration is part of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund
and is governed by Ch. 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code. These rules provide
guidance and establish the general operating procedures for the administration of the Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. Additionally, the Office of the Auditor General
performs the operational audit of the activities and investments of the State Board of
Administration. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is not a registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); however, the board has adopted operating
procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund.

The Town’s investments are categorized in the following table to give an indication of the
level of risk assumed by the Town at year end.

Town administration is authorized to invest in those instruments authorized by the Florida
statutes.

Investments are classified as to credit risk, which are summarized below:

Category 1 - Insured or registered, or securities held by the Town or its agents in the
Town 's name.

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's
trust department or agent in the Town 's name.

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or

by its trust department or agent but not in the Town 's name.

At year end, the Town 's investment balances were as follows:

Category 1
Repurchase agreements $ 650,124
Investments not subject to risk categorization:
State Board of Administration Investment Pool 1,810,469
Mutual funds 144.135
Total investments $3,905,728

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the combined balance sheet for the
Town is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $14,877,591
Investments 144,135

$15,021.726

-16-



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments
Carrying amount of deposits $11,115,998
Carrying amount of investments 3,905,728
Total $15.021.726

NOTE 4. DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS

Fund Receivables Pavables
General fund $632 $ -
Special revenue:
Police confiscated property - 632
Total $632 $632

NOTE 5. FIXED ASSETS

Changes in the general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 was as follows:

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
2000 Additions Deletions 2001
Land $ 415235 § -8 - $ 415235
Buildings 641,752 - - 641,752
Improvements other than buildings 703,142 4,767 88,028 619,881
Equipment 1,782,887 142,863 1,022,659 903,091
Sanitation system 1,834,070 - 1,834,070 -
Construction in progress 298,932 152,882 38,723 413,091
Motor vehicles - 790,624 - 790,624
Total $5,676.088 $1,091,136 $2,983.480 $3,783.674

Depreciation is not required and has not been provided on general fixed assets.

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
2000 Additions Deletions 2001
Proprietary fund:
Utility plant and systems 5 - $2,188,208 $§ - $2,188,208
Less accumulated depreciation - 730,851 - 730,851
Total $ - $1,457,357 $ - $1.457.357

-17-



NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in general long-term debt for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 was as follows:

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
2000 Additions Deductions 2001

Accrued vacation and sick leave $ 114946 § 36,755 $109297 § 42,404

Capital lease obligations 58,999 154,444 26,497 186,946

Promissory note 883,049 10,000,000 612,099 10,270,950

$1.056.994 $10,191.199 $747.893 $10,500,300
SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Sewer Stormwater Total

Operating revenues $ 859,014 § - $ 859,014
Depreciation 32,568 - 32,568
Operating income (loss) 120,187 (9,304) 110,883
Operating transfers in 122,849 103,713 226,562
Net income 244,448 95,493 339,941
Property, plant and equipment additions 231,130 - 231,130
Net working capital 575,946 95,493 671,439
Total assets 2,159,446 95,493 2,254,939
Note payable 541,898 - 541,898
Retained earnings 901,610 95,493 997,103
Total equity 1,541,123 95,493 1,636,616

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Promissory Notes

In June 2000, the Town borrowed $900,000 at 5.7% interest rate compounded quarterly from
SunTrust Bank. This note matures on June 28, 2010. The Town obtained the funding for
improvement and rehabilitation of the Town’s sewer system and other capital expenditures
authorized by the Town comrmission.

In September 2001, the Town borrowed $10,000,000 at a 4.629% interest rate from SunTrust

Bank. This note matures on September 26, 2011. The Town obtained the funding for future
capital expenditures authorized by the Town Commission.
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NOTE 8.

TowN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Promissory Notes (Continued)

Debt service to maturity is as follows:

$900,000 Note
Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:

2002 $ 74207 § 43,869 § 118,076
2003 78,440 39,636 118,076
2004 82,914 35,162 118,076
2005 87,643 30,433 118,076
2006 92,643 25,433 118,076
2007 and thereafter 397,001 45,787 442,788

Total $ 812.848 $_220.320 $1,033.168

$10,000,000 Note
Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:

2002 $ 805,892 § 448,996 $ 1,254,888
2003 843,845 411,043 1,254,888
2004 883,585 371,303 1,254,888
2005 925,197 329,691 1,254,888
2006 968,769 286,119 1,254,888
2007 and thereafter 5,572,712 701,720 6,274,432

Total $10.000.000 $2,548.872 $12.548.872

Capital Leases

Capital leases outstanding as of September 30, 2001 consist of motor vehicles. These lease
agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and therefore, have been
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments in the general long-term
debt account group.

The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2002 § 82,304
2003 74,712
2004 42,419
2005 11,225
Total minimum lease payments 210,660
Less amount representing interest 23,714
Present value of minimum lease payments $186,946
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NOTE 8.

NOTE 9.

TownN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Operating Lease

In January 2000, the Town entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for a copier, which
expires in January 2005. Future minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2001 are as
follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2002 $2,484

2003 2,484

2004 2,484

2005 828

Total minimum lease payments $8.280
Interlocal Agreement

The Town entered into an interlocal agreement with Broward County for emergency medical
services within the municipal services benefit unit and cooperative delivery of fire protection
services with the Town. This agreement was entered into in January 2000 for a five-year term
with an option to renew for five additional periods. Renewal will commence on October 1 of
the fifth year. The Town’s obligation to the County will be $337,500 for fiscal year 2002.

Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may
be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description

The Town participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), a cost-sharing multiple
employer Public Employee Retirement System (PERS). FRS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the PERS. Copies of the FRS’s annual report for the year ended June 30, 2000 may be
obtained by writing to the Division of Retirement, 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-1560. Payroll for Town employees covered by the System for the year ended
September 30, 2001 was approximately $1,250,000.
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TownN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 9. FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued)
Plan Description (Continued)

All full-time Town employees are eligible to participate in the System. Normal retirement is
at 10 years of credited service and age 62 or at 30 years of credited service regardless of age
for regular members. Normal retirement for special risk members (police) is at 10, 25 or 30
years and are entitled to an annual retirement benefit equal to 2 to 3 percent for each year of
credited service times their average final compensation.

Benefits vest after six years of credited service. Early retirement may be taken any time after
vesting; however, there is a five percent benefit reduction for each year prior to normal
retirement age or date. The System also provides disability and survivor benefits. Benefits
are established by State statute.

Funding Policy
Employees cannot contribute to the System. The Town is required to contribute a certain
percentage of employee compensation per year. The following are the required contributions

and the percentage coniributed by the Town for the current year and the preceding two years:

Required Actual Percentage
Contribution  Contribution Contributed

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2001 $179,713 §179,713 100%
2000 224,519 224,519 100
1999 254,360 254,360 100

NOTE 10. VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND

Basis of Accounting
The Volunteer Firefighters Pension Plan (the Plan) financial statements are prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. All contributions are recognized in the period the services are
performed.

Investments
Investments, which consist of certificates of deposit, are carried at fair value (which is cost)
and are classified as deposits for purposes of risk categorization. Interest is recognized when

earned. Purchases and sales are recorded on a trade-date basis.

Within certain limitations as specified in the Plan, the investment policy is determined by the
Board of Trustees and is implemented by an investment advisor.
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TowN OoF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 10. VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND (Continued)
Plan Description

The Volunteer Firefighters Pension Plan is a single-employer Public Employee Retirement
System (PERS) defined benefit pension plan. Volunteer firefighters do not receive salaries
but receive incentive pay based on calls to which they respond. Participants should refer to
the Plan documents for more complete information. A publicly available financial statement
for the Plan can be obtained from the Board of Trustees, 255 Commercial Boulevard, Suite
200, Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida.

As of October 1, 1999, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, firefighters’ membership data
related to the Plan as stated in the actuarial valuation was as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and former volunteers

entitled to receive benefits but not yet receiving them 7
Current volunteers:

Fully vested -

Non-vested 33

' 3

All volunteer firefighters of the Town are eligible for membership in the Plan; eligibility is
determined by a point system whereby a firefighter must accumulate 30 points during a Plan
year to be credited for one year of service. Points are accumulated by attendance at meetings,
drills, fires and false alarms. Normal retirement is at age 55 and 10 years of credited service.
The benefit is $10 per month for each year of credited service payable in a life annuity, with
other options available. Disability benefits are available for total and permanent disability
payable at $10 per month for each year of credited service. Death benefits are available under
the same terms as normal retirement benefits.

Funding Policy

Firefighters are not required to contribute to the Plan but may voluntarily do so.
Contributions from the State of Florida are based on the amount of fire insurance written by
private insurers on property within Town limits. The Town is required to contribute if there
is any shortfall between the State’s contributions and funding requirements of the Plan.

Funding is based on actuarial determined required contributions using the frozen entry age
actuarial cost method under which the excess of actuarial present value of projected benefits
of the group over the actuarial value of assets is allocated over the service of the group, not as
a sum of individual allocations. Annual required contribution as determined by the actuarial
valuation was $11,794; based on estimated State contributions of $9,863, contributions by the
Town of $1,931 would be required.
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TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 10. VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND (Continued)
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset

The annual pension cost and net pension asset under the most recent actuarial report dated
October 1, 2000 are as follows:

Annual required contribution $11,794
Interest on net pension asset (2,692)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 3,977
Annual pension cost 13,079
Contributions made 47,375
Increase in net pension asset 34,296
Net pension asset, beginning of year 38,457
Net pension asset, end of year $72,758

The annual required contribution for 2001 was determined as part of the most recent actuarial
report dated October 1, 1999, using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included a 7% investment rate of return net of administrative expenses and an
inflation component of 4%.

Trend Information

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC APC Contributed Asset
9/30/01 $13,079 362.2% $72,753
9/30/00 13,212 69.2 38,457
9/30/99 12,690 140.2 42,524

NOTE 11. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial
insurance. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverages in the
prior year. The Town provides employee medical benefits through commercial insurance
coverage. Settlements during the previous three years did not exceed insurance coverage.

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Purchase of Land
On December 18, 2001, the Town purchased land for $685,000. The land was acquired as

part of the parking revenue improvement fund’s project to add to the existing parking areas
within the business district of the Town.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




Actuarial
Valuation
Date
10/1/95
10/1/97

10/1/99

TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

)
Actuarial
(1) Accrued
Actuarial Liability Unfunded
Value (AAL) - AAL
of Frozen (UAAL)
Assets Entry Age D-(2
$154,992 $135,147 $ (19,845)
181,337 160,453 (20,884)
227,535 189,763 (37,772)

Note: Actuarial valuations are performed bi-annually.

Note: Volunteer firefighters - no covered payroll.

4.

Funded
Ratio

M)+=(2)
114.7%
113.0%

119.9%



Year
Ended

September 30,

1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Annual Contribution Contribution
Required from from
Contribution Employer State
$ 9,492 $ 1,220 $ 8,778
9,492 1,653 8,995
11,630 2,212 18,073
11,630 2,871 14916
11,794 3,417 5,730

Percentage

Contributed

105.30%
112.2
174.4
152.9
77.6
0

The information presented in the required supplemental schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follow:

Valuation date 10/1/99

Actuarial cost method Frozen Entry Age Method
Amortization method N/A

Remaining amortization period N/A

Asset valuation method Market Value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return*®

Projected salary increases N/A - No salaries paid

*Cost of living adjustments @ 4%

-25-

7% compounded annually



COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND AND
ACCOUNT GROUP STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULES




GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES




GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Town and is used to account for
resources traditionally associated with governments which are not required legally or by sound
financial management to be accounted for in another fund.



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Property taxes $1,896,353 $1,940,633 $ 44,280
Franchise fees and utility taxes 947,484 1,002,015 54,531
Parking meters 469,168 522,205 53,037
Licenses and permits 64,061 95,132 31,071
Intergovernmental 310,257 380,643 70,386
Charges for services 25,139 31,937 6,798
Fines and forfeitures 404,996 452,617 47,621
Grants 19,700 21,506 1,806
Interest and other 147,305 204,396 57,091
- Total revenues $4,284,463 $4,651,084 $ 366,621
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Administrative $ 751,198 $ 612,325 $ 138,873
Legal 198,100 130,481 67,619
Commission 41,381 38,864 2,517
General 344,948 343,067 1,881
Total general government 1,335,627 1,124,737 210,890
Public safety 1,738,017 1,668,751 69,266
Physical environment 20,807 2,607 18,200
Roads and streets 817,822 628,133 189,689
Recreation 146,573 137,362 9,211
Total current expenditures 4,058,846 3,561,590 497,256
Capital outlay:
General government:
Administrative . 77,752 76,711 1,041
Public safety 1,235 1,235 -
Roads and streets 24,037 22,790 1,247
Recreation 22,766 22,739 27
Total capital outlay 125,790 123,475 2,315
Total expenditures $4,184,636 $3,685,065 $ 499,571
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for a particular purpose.

Volunteer Fire Department Fund - This fund, which is a blended component unit, accounts for
the revenues and expenditures of the Volunteer Fire Department.

Police Confiscated Property Fund - This fund accounts for the confiscation of property and the
related authorized law enforcement expenditures.



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Due to other funds

Fund balances:
Designated for police
Designated for fire
Designated for subsequent year's expenditure
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances
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Volunteer Police
Fire Confiscated

Department  Property Total
3 773 33,513 $34,286
14,768 - 14,768
$ 15541 33,513 $49,054
3 - 632 $§ 632
- 23,981 23,981
15,541 - 15,541
- 8,900 8,900
15,541 32,881 48,422
$ 15,541 33,513 $49,054




TownN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Volunteer Police
Fire Confiscated
Department  Property Total

Revenues:
Interest and other § 27540 $ 6,650 3 34,190
Total revenues 27,540 6,650 34,190
Expenditures:
Public safety 202,123 - 202,123
Capital Outlay 14,622 - 14,622
Total expenditures 216,745 - 216,745
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (189,205) 6,650 (182,555)
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in 204,075 13,813 217,888
Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures 14,870 20,463 35,333
Fund balances, beginning 671 12,418 13,089
Fund balances, ending $ 15541 $ 32,881 § 48422
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Revenues:
Interest and other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues over expenditures
and other financing sources

TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Volunteer Fire Department Police Confiscated Property Total
Variance Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual  (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual  (Unfavorable)
$ - $ 27540 % 27540 $§ 121 $ 6,650 §$ 6,529 §$ 121§ 34,190 $ 34,069
- 27,540 27,540 121 6,650 6,529 121 34,190 34,069
190,140 202,123 (11,983) - - - 190,140 202,123 (11,983)
14,622 14,622 - 12,496 - 12,496 27,118 14,622 12,496
204,762 216,745 (11,983) 12,496 - 12,496 217,258 216,745 513
(204,762) (189,205) 15,557  (12,375) 6,650 19,025 (217,137) (182,555) 34,582
204,762 204,075 (687) 12,375 13,813 1,438 217,137 217,888 751
204,762 204,075 (687) 12,375 13,813 1,438 217,137 217,888 751
$ - $ 14870 % 14,870 $ - $20,463 $ 20,463 % - $35333 §% 35,333
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities.

Capital Improvement Program Fund - This fund is used to account for major capital
acquisitions and projects to improve the Town. Planned improvements and acquisitions include
Anglin Square, residential street improvements, redevelopment and sewer system maintenance.

Parking Revenue Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for beautification projects
and capital acquisitions funded by parking meter revenue



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

ASSETS

Cash
Total assets

FUND BALANCES

Fund balances:
Designated for subsequent years projects
Designated for vehicle and equipment replacement
Undesignated

Total fund balances
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Parking
Capital Revenue
Improvement Improvement Total

$ 10,505,560 $ 1,006,723 $11,512,.283
$ 10,505,560 $ 1,006,723 $11,512,283
$ 5,135230 $ - $ 5,135,230
80,610 - 80,610
5,289,720 1,006,723 6,296,443
$ 10,505,560 $ 1,006,723 §$11,512,283




TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Revenues:
Interest and other

Expenditures:

Capital outlay:
General government
Physical environment
Economic development
Recreation

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from promissory note

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Parking
Capital Revenue
Improvement Improvement Total
$ 72,975 % 7,773 % 80,748
7914 7,050 14,964
53,057 - 53,057
1,688 - 1,688
98,138 - 98,138
22,601 - 22,601
16,759 - 16,759
200,157 7,050 207,207
(127,182) 723 (126,459)
455,112 1,035,000 1,490,112
(1,035,352) (250,000)  (1,285,352)
10,000,000 - 10,000,000
9,419,760 785,000 10,204,760
9,292 578 785,723 10,078,301
1,212,982 221,000 1,433,982

$10,505,560 § 1,006,723 $11,512,283
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TownN or LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Capital Improvement Parking Revenue Improvement Total
Variance Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Interest and other $ - 72,975 $ 72,975 % -5 7773 $ 7,773 - $ 80,748 § 80,748
Insurance reimbursement - - - - - - - ) }
Total revenues - 72,975 72,975 - 7,773 7,773 - 80,748 80,748
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
General government 10,014,462 7,914 10,000,548 912,239 7,050 905,189 10,926,701 14,964 10,911,737
Physical environment 62,419 53,057 9,362 - - - 62,419 53,057 9,362
Economic development 1,688 1,688 - - - - 1,688 1,688 -
Roads and streets - - - - - - - - -
Recreation 403,418 98,138 305,280 - - - 403,418 98,138 305,280
Debt service: -
Principal 22,601 22,601 - - - - 22,601 22,601 -
Interest 16,759 16,759 - - - - 16,759 16,759 -
Total expenditures 10,521,347 200,157 10,321,190 912,239 7,050 905,189 11,433,586 207,207 11,226,379
Deficiencies of revenues
over expenditures (10,521,347) (127,182) (10,394,165) (912,239) 723 (897,416) (11,433,586) (126,459) (11,291,581)
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriated fund balance 1,181,587 - (1,181,587) 127,239 - 127,239 1,308,826 - (1,054,348)
Operating transfers in 375,112 455,112 80,000 1,035,000 1,035,000 - 1,410,112 1,490,112 80,000
Operating transfers out (1,035,352)  (1,035,352) - (250,000)  (250,000) - (1,285,352) (1,285,352) -
Proceeds from promissory note 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 10,521,347 9,419,760 (1,101,587) 912,239 785,000 127,239 11,433,586 10,204,760 (974,348)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing _
sources (uses) $ - $ 9292578 % 9,292,578 § - $ 785723 % 785,723 § - $10,078,301 $ 10,078,301
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the Town Council is that the costs of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered

primarily through user charges; or where the Town Council has decided that periodic determination of
net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

SEWER UTILITY — This fund is used to account for the activities of the Sewer Utility.

STORMWATER UTILITY — This fund is used to account for improvements to the Town's
stormwater systems and pollution from stormwater runoff.



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash
Customer accounts receivable, net

Total current assets

Fixed assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Current portion of promissory note

Total current liabilities
Long-term promissory note

Total liabilities

Fund equity:
Contributed capital
Retained earnings:
Reserved for renewal and replacement
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures
Unreserved
Total equity

Total liabilities and fund equity
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Sewer Stormwater Total
$ 637,809 $ 95493 §$§ 733,302
64,280 - 64,280
702,089 95,493 797,582
1,457,357 - 1,457,357
$2,159.446 $ 95,493 $2,254,939
$ 76425 § - $ 76425
49,718 - 49,718
126,143 - 126,143
492,180 - 492,180
618,323 - 618,323
639,513 - 639,513
624,980 - 624,980
- 94,865 94,865
276,630 628 277,258
1,541,123 95,493 1,636,616
$2,159,446 $ 95,493 $2,254,939




TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Sewer  Stormwater Total

Operating revenues:

Charges for services $859,014 3 - $859,014
Operating expenses:

Operating expenses 663,196 6,388 669,584

Personal services 26,875 - 26,875

Miscellaneous 16,188 2,916 19,104

Depreciation 32,568 - 32,568

Total operating expenses 738,827 9,304 748,131

Operating income (loss) 120,187 (9,304) 110,883
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Interest income 34,929 1,084 36,013

Interest expense (33,517) - (33,517)

Net non-operating revenues 1,412 1,084 2,496

Net income (loss) before operating transfers 121,599 (8,220) 113,379
Operating transfers in 122,849 103,713 226,562
Net income 244,448 95,493 339,941
Add depreciation on contributed capital 32,182 - 32,182
Increase in retained earnings 276,630 95,493 372,123
Retained earnings, beginning - - -
Equity transfer in 624,980 - 624,980
Retained earnings, ending $901,610 $ 95493 $997,103
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TownN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Sewer Stormwater Totals

Cash flows from operating activities: ,
Operating income (loss) $ 120,187 $ (9,304) $ 110,883
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 32,568 - 32,568
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase Accounts receivable (64,280) - (64,280)
Increase accounts payable 76,425 - 76,425
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 164,900 (9,304) 155,596

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Operating transfers in 122,848 103,713 226,561
Residual equity transfer in 624,980 - 624,980
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 747,828 103,713 851,541

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Capital expenditures (231,130) - (231,130)
Principal payments on debt (45,202) - (45,202)
Interest paid (33,516) - (33,516)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (309,848) - (309,848)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 34,929 1,084 36,013

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 637,809 95,493 733,302

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning - - -

Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 637,809 § 95493 $ 733,302
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
ACCOUNT GROUP

The general fixed assets account group reports those fixed assets used for general government
purposes, which includes land, buildings, sewer system and major equipment.



TownN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

General fixed assets:

Land $ 415,235
Buildings 641,752
Improvements other than buildings 619,881
Equipment 903,091
Construction in progress 413,091
Motor vehicles 790,624

Total general fixed assets $3,783,674

Investment in general fixed assets by source:

General fund $2,462,498
Grant contributions 319,385
Gifts and donations ) 216,488
Capital improvements 780,536
Parking revenue improvement 4,767

Total investment in general fixed assets $3,783,674
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TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Improvements
Other Than Construction Motor
Function Land Buildings Buildings Equipment in Progress  Vchicles Total
General government $ - $120,328 § 1,200 $ 143,845 $ 16,450 $ 30,580 $ 312,403
Fire protection - - - 240,761 - 512,020 752,781
Police protection - 46,387 - - - - 46,387
Streets and parks - 51,066 55,750 62,139 2,772 174,473 346,200
Recreation and beach - 2,673 97,402 26,844 189,397 - 316,316
Code enforcement - - - 8,254 - 73,551 81,805
Economic development - - 19,920 4,878 204,472 - 229,270
Parking system - - 4,767 - - - 4,767
Prior to fiscal year 1996 415,235 421,298 440,842 416,370 - - 1,693,745

Total general fixed assets ~ $415,235 $641,752 $§ 619,881 $§ 903,091 $ 413,091 § 790,624 $3,783,674

Note: Data in this format was not available prior to fiscal year 1996.
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TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
2000 Additions Deletions 2001

General government $ 205,117 $ 107,286 $ - $ 312,403
Fire protection 226,139 526,642 - 752,781
Police protection 285,488 211,997 451,098 46,387
Streets and parks 149,908 228,292 32,000 346,200
Recreation and beach 293,577 22,739 - 316,316
Code enforcement 6,049 104,165 28,409 81,805
Economic development 76,387 152,883 - 229,270
Sewers 185,891 - 185,891 -
Parking system - 4,767 - 4,767
Prior to fiscal year 1996 4,247,463 - 2,553,718 1,693,745
Total general fixed assets $§ 5,676,019 $1,358,771 §$3,251,116 $ 3,783,674
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

To account for the Town’s unmatured principal and general long-term obligations.



TowN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Amount available and to be provided:
Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term debt $10,500,300

General long-term debt:

Accrued vacation and sick leave $ 42,404
Capital lease obligations 186,946
Promissory note 10,270,950

Total general long-term debt $10,500,300
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STATISTICAL SECTION




TowN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Roads

Fiscal General Public Physical Economic and

Year Govemnment Safety  Environment Environment Streets
1991/92 $ 454,719 $869,172 $ 628,380 $ - $392,240
1992/93 535,759 926,372 685,230 - 451,785
1993/94 610,300 894,422 635,050 - 454974
1994/95 772,945 1,258,906 862,023 - 373226
1995/96 868,678 1,147,334 566,157 - 401,704
1996/97 699,432 1,266,304 532,746 - 447,640
1997/98 725,422 1,334,912 762,331 - 533218
1998/99 802,030 1,525215 839,574 - 608,384
1999/00 1,038,626 1,599,358 858,258 - 639,828
2000/01 1,139,701 1,870,874 55,664 1,688 628,133

(1) Governmental Fund Types: General, Special Revenue and Capital Projects,
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Parks and

Recreation

§ 30,269
37,098
37,746
39,134
37,434
47,120
60,225
98,259

204,850

235,500

Debt Capital
Service  Qutlay Total
$97,786 $80,463 $2,553,029
94,331 274,341 3,004,916
95,810 202,557 2,930,859
96,961 451,338 3,854,533
93,232 233,171 3,347,710
94,185 231,734 3,319,161
- 349265 3,765,373
- 538,306 4,411,768
29,520 119,921 4,490,361
39,360 138,097 4,109,017



TowN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Property  Franchise Licenses Fines Interest

Fiscal Taxes Utility  Parking and Inter- Charges and and

Year Assess Taxes Meters  Permits Gov't Services Forfeitures Grants Other Total
1991/92 §$1,025345 § 566,072 § - $80,379 $208,592 $395223 §$126,540 § - §111,132 §2,513,283
1992/93 1,107,060 601,405 - 76,976 264977 472256 113,212 9,660 67,009 2,712,555
1993/94 1,252,826 611,670 - 97,777 261,844 451,277 135,910 22,373 265,603 3,099,280
1994/95 1,268,970 616,658 - 71,247 269,564 452,788 209,348 24,457 438,396 3,351,428
1995/96 1,288,589 638,043 373,383 83336 272,129 473,953 276,909 - 96,459 3,504,801
1996/97 1,278,107 674,732 408,338 61,419 284,623 481,900 283,252 53,972 122,720 3,649,063
1997/98 1,576,735 819,166 426,393 63,741 288,622 547,090 401,327 - 201,875 4,324,949
1998/99 1,649,463 886,470 529,239 61,444 328,092 571,127 468,163 30,813 182,949 4,707,760
1999/00 1,761,322 954,994 491,304 55897 374,416 643,183 470,803 8,004 343,709 5,103,632
2000/01 1,940,633 1,002,015 522,205 95,132 380,643 31,937 452,617 21,506 319,334 4,766,022

(1) Governmental Fund Types: General, Special Revenue and Capital Projects.
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Fiscal
Year

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

TowN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

Total
Tax

Levy
[60)]
$1,070,175
1,151,382
1,289,554
1,297,908
1,325,336
1,313,213
1,624,589
1,695,686

1,815,592

2,000,611

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Current
Tax Percent Delinquent Total
Collections of Levy Tax Tax
) Collected Collections Collections
$1,022,947 95.6% § 2,445 $1,025,392
1,105,843 96.0% 2,425 1,108,268
1,238,931 96.1% 8,496 1,247,427
1,251,539 96.4% 13,005 1,264,544
1,274,670 96.2% 8,936 1,283,606
1,265,524 96.4% 4,138 1,269,662
1,565,486 96.4% 3,041 1,568,527
1,636,320 96.5% 3,614 1,639,934
1,753,186 96.6% 2,854 1,756,040
1,932,547 96.6% 2,234 1,934,781

Source: Broward County, Florida, Property Appraiser

(1) Net of certified adjustments

(2) Florida Law allows up to 4 % discount for timely payment of property taxes

4D

Net

Taxable

Value

95.8%

96.3%

96.7%

97.4%

96.9%

96.7%

96.5%

96.7%

96.7%

96.7%



Fiscal
Year

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

Source: Broward County, Florida, Property Appraiser

TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

Real
Property

$272,039,520
265,376,540
271,161,030
272,655,110
278,250,640
281,769,560
439,918,640
461,691,590
497,729,400

560,251,790

Exemptions

TAXABLE PROPERTY VALUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Personal

Property Real
16,920,452 $22,663,880
15,903,522 22,445,740
14,320,031 22,219,840
16,085,105 22,385,730
15,278,403 23,720,380
13,920,490 24,143,140
14,423,656 31,013,910
15,084,338 35,249,530
15,279,811 40,565,170
12,958,060 46,356,830

Personal
$ 2,550
2,550
2,550
2,900
13,700
13,604
13,604
13,514
13,514

13,434

Net Taxable
Value

$266,293,542
258,831,772
263,258,671
266,351,585
269,794,963
271,533,306
423,314,782
441,512,884
472,430,527

526,839,586



TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX RATES (PER $1,000)
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

State Special Districts

South
Broward Florida Florida North

Fiscal Lauderdale  Broward County Inland Water Broward Hillsboro

Year By-The-Sea  County Schools Navigation Management Hospital Inlet Total
1992 4.0201 7.2275 9.9258 0.0530 0.5470 2.5000  0.1201 24.3935
1993 4.5060 7.9618 9.8310 0.0520 0.5470 2.4890  0.1220 25.5088
1994 4.9043 8.1327 9.8197 0.0510 0.5970 24753 0.1195 26.0995
1995 4.9043 8.0343 10.0259 0.0490 0.5970 2.4459  0.1163 26.1727
1996 4.9043 8.1165 10.0366 0.0400 0.6470 24327  0.1142 26.2913
1997 4.8500 7.7524 9.9400 0.0380 0.6720 24200  0.1112 25.7836
1998 3.8500 7.8380 9.9745 0.0500 0.6970 24087  0.1071 24.9253
1999 3.8500 7.5710 9.7256 0.0470 0.6970 2.5000  0.1021 24.4927
2000 3.8500 7.5270 8.9553 0.0410 0.6970 24803  0.1036 23.6542
2001 3.8500 7.5250 8.5410 0.0410 0.6970 24803 0.1036 23.2379

Source: Broward County, Florida, Property Appraiser
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TownN OF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

Name
T F V Properties
Ashley Holdings, Inc.
Ruttger Family Partners
VSP Partners, Ltd.
Maxi Holdings, Ltd.
Ahmet & Mera Abazovic
FEMS Venture
Carl and Cynthia Fiorenza
Benihana National of Florida

Outrigger Association

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

~

Tvpe of Business

Hotel
Hotel
Hotel
Hotel
Apartments
Hotel
Retail
Residential
Restaurant

Resort

Source: Tax Roll of Broward County, Florida

Taxable
Value

$ 8,643,150
5,314,390
8,741,660
6,018,870
1,881,550
1,727,900
1,568,010
1,480,370

1,399,880

3,284,500

$40,060,280

Percentage
of Total
Taxable

Valuation

2.00%
1.20%
1.98%
1.36%
0.74%
0.43%
0.39%
0.36%

0.34%

0.32%

9.12%



Fiscal
Year

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

Source: Broward County, Florida, Property Appraiser

Source: Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida, Building Department

TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

CONSTRUCTION AND PROPERTY VALUE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Property
Value

$266,293,542
258,831,772
263,258,671
266,351,585
269,794,963
271,533,306
423,314,782
441,512,884
472,430,527

526,839,586

46-

Construction
Residential Commercial
Yalues Values
$ 519,175 $1,420,994

865,354 1,051,296
1,987,023 3,894,748
941,198 1,146,693
757,081 1,069,685
2,809,520 308,804
1,268,273 484,612
1,045,327 - 604,714
2,220,208 430,700
1,324,333 228,867



Fiscal
Year

1991/92

1992/93

1993/94

1994/95

1995/96

1996/97

1997/98

1998/99

1999/00

2000/01

TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES
TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

Principal
$75,000
75,000
80,000
85,000
85,000

90,000

16,950

67,803

LAST TEN YEARS

Total

Debt
Interest Service (1
$22,786 $§ 97,786
19,331 94,331
15,810 95,810
11,961 96,961
8,232 93,232
4,185 94,185
12,570 29,520
50,275 118,078

Total
General

Governmental
Expenditures (2)

$

2,553,029
3,004,916
2,930,859
3,854,533
3,347,710
3,319,161
3,765,373
4,411,768
4,490,361

4,857,148

(1) No general obligation debt 1998 - 2001. Promissory note obligatin 1999-2001.

(2) Included general, special, enterprise and capital improvement funds.
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Ratio of
Debt

3.80%
3.10%
3.30%
2.50%
2.80%
2.80%
0.00%
0.00%
0.76%

2.40%



TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

Date of Incorporation:

Year of Charter Adoption:

Form of Town Government:

Location:

Number of Employees:

Recreation facilities:

Infrastructure:

Socio-Economic Data:

Population Statistics:

Source; U.S. Census

STATISTICS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

November 30, 1947
1947
Commission-Manager

Lauderdale-By-The-Sea is in the east-central part of Broward
County and shares boundaries with two other municipalities.
Its eastern boundary 1s the Atlantic Ocean. It is 30 miles north
of Miami and 33 miles south of Palm Beach. The Town is just
over 2.5 square miles in area and has a population of 5,943
with a peak seasonable population of 12,600. it is a seaside
community with primary industries being retail trade,
tourism/hospitality, finance, insurance and real estate.

Full and Part-Time, Permanent Contractual 117.5
Miles of Public Beach 1
Miles of Navigable Water |
Parks 1
Tennis Courts 2
Shuffleboard Courts 2
Bocci Ball Court 1
Basketball Court 1
Town Buildings 5
Fire Stations 2
Fire Rescue Stations 2
Consumer Price Index 3.0%
Homeownership Rate 69.5%
Median Household Income $33,895
Per Capital Income $29,442
Civilian Labor Force (1) §10.9
Unemployment Rate 4.6%
Percent High School Graduate or Higher 10.4%
Percent Bachelor's Degree or Higher 10.3%

Bureau of Labor Statistics - Broward County
(1) Number of Persons, in thousands, not seasonably adjusted.
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COMPLIANCE SECTION




Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Compliance and on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager
Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea,
Florida, (the Town) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2001, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 7, 2001. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the intermnal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving
the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
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Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager
Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida
Page Two

However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have
reported to management in the accompanying schedule of findings.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, Town Commission,
management, and applicable state agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than those specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is
not limited.

Foetl) Cole, //é;

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
December 7, 2001
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Management Letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida

Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager
Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea,
Florida (the Town) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2001, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 7, 2001. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We have issued our Report of Independent
Certified Public Accountants on Compliance and Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Disclosure
in this report, which is dated December 7, 2001, should be considered in conjunction with this
management letter.

In connection with our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Town for the year ended
September 30, 2001, we report the following in accordance with Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor
General Local Governmental Entity Audits which requires that this report specifically address but not be
limited to the matters outlined in Rule 10.554(1)(g):

1. No 1inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations, fraud and/or violations of laws, rules, regulations and
contractual provisions were reported in the preceding annual financial audit.

2. The Town, during fiscal year 2001, was not in a state of financial emergency as defined by Florida
Statute, Section 218.503 (1). The Town had no deficit fund balances.

3. Recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit have been implemented, except as
disclosed in the accompanying schedule of findings.

4. Recommendations to improve the Town's present financial management, accounting procedures and
internal controls are accompanying this report in the schedule of findings.

5. The Town is in compliance with the investment policy of public funds established Section 218.415
of the Florida Statutes.

6. During the course of our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Town:

a. Was in violation of any laws rules, regulations and contractual provisions.

b. Made any illegal or improper expenditures.
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Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager
Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida
Page Two

c.  Had improper or inadequate accounting procedures.
d.  Failed to record financial t{ransactions.

e.  Had other inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations and instances of fraud.

7.  The annual financial report for the year ended September 30, 2001 has been filed with the
Department of Banking and Finance pursuant to Section 218.32 Florida Statutes and is in
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001.

8.  The Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea, Florida was incorporated by Laws of Florida 27675. The
Volunteer Fire Department, a blended component unit of the Town, was created by ordinance in

1962.

9. During the course of our audit, we applied financial condition assessment procedures pursuant to
Rule 10.566(8). It is management’s responsibility to monitor the Town’s financial condition, and
our financial condition assessment, which was performed as of the Town’s fiscal year end, was
based on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by
the Town. There were no findings regarding deteriorating financial conditions.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, Town Commission,
management, and the Auditor General of the State of Florida and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and

its distribution is not limited.

’ 2 c P > . ,7
/Zg:cf}/ {71 [:“’»4 FAae (’/ 7/‘/ /f;;i’j/éff/

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
December 7, 2001
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TowN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PARTI. CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Condition

During our audit, we noted that the town did not have an established threshold concerning the
capitalization of fixed assets.

Recommendation
We recommend that the town consider establishing a minimum amount threshold for capitalization of its

fixed assets. This will result in a more uniform treatment of fixed assets and also eliminate unnecessary
work by the accounting department in recording and depreciating minor items.

Management Response
The Town has established $750 as its threshold.
PARTII. PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS AND STATUS

Personne! Policies and Procedures

Condition

During our audit of the financial statements, we noted that the Town’s personnel policies and procedures
are not followed or have not been updated to reflect certain thresholds. We encountered three items that
should be addressed by the personnel policies and procedures manual, as follows: (1) The purchasing
procedures, including authorization limits for oral and written bids as well as requirements for
commission approval on purchases, has not been updated for several years; currently, these purchases‘
require an approval of all expenditures of items over $50. We noted that for the majority of the year, the
Town did not follow the existing purchasing procedures because the threshold limits were too low; (2)
we also noted that the Town had a poor audit trail on sewer receipts. The sewer collector did not keep a
copy of the receipt for payments made by the resident, which made 1t difficuit to identify the resident
who paid his bill; (3) we noted that the Town did not reconcile the payroll reports from the outsourced
payroll company to the general ledger on a regular basis. The lack of reconciling payroll reports to the
general ledger causes the Town to be susceptible to theft and misappropriation.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town review its existing personnel policies and procedures manual and propose
and implement changes to reflect suitable procedures that would address and correct.

Managenient Response

We agree that the Town’s existing policies and procedures manual should be suitably updated. We are
looking into sefting aside the time to modify the policies and procedures manual. Items #2 and #3 have
been implemented during the current fiscal year.
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TownN oF LAUDERDALE-BY-THE-SEA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
(Continued)

PARTII. PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS AND STATUS (Continued)

Bookkeeping
Condition

While testing the Volunteer Firefighter Department Special Revenue Fund, a blended component unit,
we noted that overall bookkeeping over the related activity was not adequately maintained. The
Volunteer Firefighter Department records transactions in two general ledgers. This form of
recordkeeping is at risk of having transactions duplicated. Additionally, the Volunteer Firefighter
Department was unable to produce adequate bank reconciliations as of September 30, 2000. With
improper bank reconciliations, the balances are more susceptible to theft and misappropriation. Lastly,
the Volunteer Firefighter Department does not keep an adequate audit trail of contributions received in
their booster drives. Without an adequate audit trial of such matters, contributions are more susceptible
to theft and misappropriations.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Volunteer Firefighter Department outsource its accounting function to an
experienced and independent bookkeeper, as well as create written policies and procedures to clarify the
functions of the bookkeeper and the Volunteer Firefighter Department’s paid administrative staff.
Additionally, all deposits should be reconciled and the appropriate documentation maintained by the
accountant.

Management Response

This comment has not been implemented as yet.

-54.



	2001 CAFR Part 1
	2001 CAFR Part 2

